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MA WCM FP Limited MA ADG Limited

20,000 5,000
2022 2023 31
MA Crabel Limited
AIFM
AIFM AIFM
4,166 0.04 12
AIFM
AIFM
1.25 12

365
366
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365 366
20
NAV
NAV
31 30 30 10
12 31
NAV
MA Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited
AIFM
AIFM AIFM
4,166 0.04 12

AIFM
AIFM

1.40
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2024
36,927,135 100.21
75,609 0.21
36,851,526
100.00
5,260
2024
SIGNUM  MILLENIA 11
LIMITED 0.565 [2025/ /26|  30,752,270|  29,996,810| 30,008,065 81.43
/VARIABLE/REGDENTN
SIGNUM  MILLENIA 11
LIMITED 0.00 |2025/ /26| 10,213,450 6,097,576 6,919,069 18.78
/VARIABLE/REGDEMTN/AUD/

2024

2024
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2024
2020 78,046,734 11,140 10.19 1,454
2021 56,729,879 8,097 10.25 1,463
2022 38,185,271 5,450 9.34 1,333
2023 32,302,780 4,611 9.14 1,305
2024 31,142,243 4,445 9.54 1,362
2023 10 31,060,030 4,433 9.21 1,315
11 31,356,989 4,476 9.31 1,329
12 31,574,670 4,507 9.39 1,340
2024 31,387,523 4,480 9.44 1,347
31,373,606 4,478 9.45 1,349
31,419,629 4,485 9.48 1,353
31,161,780 4,448 9.51 1,357
31,142,243 4,445 9.54 1,362
30,636,972 4,373 9.58 1,367
30,707,069 4,383 9.63 1,374
30,782,641 4,394 9.68 1,382
29,952,968 4,275 9.74 1,390
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2020 28,945,743 2,858 10.32 1,019
2021 16,534,876 1,632 10.34 1,021
2022 12,164,151 1,201 9.22 910
2023 10,198,834 1,007 9.22 910
2024 9,842,348 972 9.60 948
2023 10 10,143,759 1,001 9.27 915
11 10,158,187 1,003 9.35 923
12 10,201,755 1,007 9.44 932
2024 10,029,824 990 9.49 937
10,015,927 989 9.52 940
10,046,454 992 9.55 943
10,074,680 995 9.54 942
9,842,348 972 9.60 948
9,838,377 971 9.62 950
9,869,009 974 9.66 954
9,904,975 978 9.70 958
9,943,868 982 9.74 962
)

1.90

0.59

8.88

2.14

4.38
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)

3.20

0.19

10.83

0.00

4.12

100x
10.00
10.00

7,758,196.266 101,300.000 7,656,896.266
7,758,196.266 101,300.000 7,656,896.266
0.000 2,122,861.672 5,534,034.594
0.000 2,122,861.672 5,534,034.594
0.000 1,444,626.414 4,089,408.180
0.000 1,444,626.414 4,089,408.180
0.000 556,339.658 3,533,068.522
0.000 556,339.658 3,533,068.522
0.000 270,152.786 3,262,915.736
0.000 270,152.786 3,262,915.736
2,804,049.901 0.000 2,804,049.901
2,804,049.901 0.000 2,804,049.901
0.000 1,204,359.513 1,599,690.388
0.000 1,204,359.513 1,599,690.388
0.000 280,608.978 1,319,081.410
0.000 280,608.978 1,319,081.410
0.000 212,676.462 1,106,404 .948
0.000 212,676.462 1,106,404.948
0.000 81,610.925 1,024,794.023
0.000 81,610.925 1,024,794.023
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328

23 103

2024 30
142.73
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2024 31

2020 03
2024 31

37,947,059 37,799,347 5,395,101
540,867 77,198
243,925 34,815
159 23
49,427 7,055
38,633,725 5,514,192
98,721 14,090
90,386 12,901
21,517 3,071
21,314 3,042
11,034 1,575
242,972 34,679
38,390,753 5,479,512
6,667,726 951,685
31,723,027 4,527,828

1,024,794

3,262,916

6.51 929

9.72 1,387
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2020 03
2024 31
268,222 38,283
268,222 38,283
191,351 27,312
130,430 18,616
105,776 15,097
60,736 8,669
55,774 7,961
40,192 5,737
15,652 2,234
4,399 628
3,610 515
607,920 86,768
(339, 698) (48, 485)
(96,581) (13,785)
(6,988) (997)
(103,569) (14,782)
1,825,899 260,611
12,721 1,816
1,838,620 262,426
1,735,051 247,644

1,395,353 199,159
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2020 03
2024 31
(339, 698) (48, 485)
(103,569) (14,782)
1,838,620 262,426
1,395,353 199,159
(2,705,800) (386,199)
(1,310, 447) (187,040)
39,701,200 5,666,552
38,390,753 5,479,512
31
(81,611) (236,395)
(81,611) (236,395)
(506,996) (72,364) (2,198,804) (313,835)
(506,996) (72,364) (2,198,804) (313,835)
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2020 03

2024 31
1,395,353 199,159
2,696,331 384,847
96,581 13,785
(1,825,899) (260,611)
309,764 44,213
(28,773) (4,107)
20,435 2,917
49,023 6,997
23,173 3,307
(4,517) (645)
3,339 477
2,734,810 390,339
(3,030,797) (432,586)
(3,030,797) (432,586)
(295,987) (42,246)
1,080,779 154,260
784,792 112,013
540,867 77,198
243,925 34,815

784,792 112,013
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2020 03
31
6.14 876 9.41 1,343
(0.05) ') (0.08) (11)
0.42 60 0.39 56
0.37 53 0.31 44
6.51 929 9.72 1,387
5.96 3.29
1.59 1.60
(0.85) (0.90)
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2020 03

2020 31
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GAAP
FASB
ASC 946
FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2024 31
2024
31
$ $ $ 37,799,347 $ 37,799,347

117/257



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 31
$ 2,792,912 $ $
$ 2,792,912 $ $
NAV
JGB
GSI
MA WCM FP Limited MA Crabel Limited MA
GCI Limited MA Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited
JGB
GSI
2024 31
0.78
2024 31
0.06
0.06
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FASB ASC 740

more likely than not

50
2024 31
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4,166
0.04
2024 31 2024
31
0.01
2024 31
2024 31
0.015 2024
31 2024 31
7,500
15,000 2024 31
2024 31
90,000
125,000 0.09
75,000
MA WCM FP Limited MA ADG Limited
20,000 5,000 2024
31 2024 31
0.53
2024 31
2024 31
0.01
MA WCM FP Limited MA ADG Limited
20,000

500,000 2024 31
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2024 31
44,652 8,208
2024 11
20
2024 1,852,942
2025 28
NAV
GAAP
NAV
GAAP
GAAP NAV
NAV
2024 31
NAV 37,687,896
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2020 03
2024 31

98.5

98.5
10,248,450 Signum Millenia Il Ltd. 0.54 due 03/26/25 6,569,002
32,630,180 Signum Millenia Il Ltd. 0.00 due 03/26/25 31,230,345
37,947,059 37,799,347
37,947,059 37,799,347
37,947,059 37,799,347
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2024

(Expressed in Unifed States Doliars)

Assets
Investments, at fair value (cost 537,047.058) 37,760,347
Cash 540,887
Cash dencminated in [onzign currenccs 243,925
Recaivablas far
Investments sold 158
Othar assals _ 4DE2T
Total assets 33,633,725
Liabilities
Payabias for:
Custody fees 08,721
Professional feas 90,366
Printing fees 21,517
Managemant fees 21,114
Accounting and admimigirative fecs 11,034
Total liabilities 242 872
Net assets 33,300,753
Net assets
Clgssz AUD 6.B8T.7T26
Class USD 3723027
Units sutstanding
Class ALID 1.024,794
Class USD 2625918
Net assat value par unit
Clags AUD 8.51
Class USD 8.72

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these linoncial slalements.

a
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Target Selling at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the vear ended May 31, 2024

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Investmant income

Intarest incomea 5 a1 feers
Total investment income 265,277
Expenses
Distributor lees 191,351
Managerment ees 130,430
Professional fees 105,776
Cuslody fess 80,735
Accounting and adminsratve fees 85,774
Printing fees 40,192
Trustes fees 15,852
Criver fees £.339
Agent company fees 3810
Total cxpenscs 07,820
Met investment logs {335.558)

REALISED AND UNREALISED GAIN/LOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS AND

FOREIGN CURRENCY:
Realised gain/(loss) on:
Investments in sacurities (35.581)
Forgign cumency transactions {5.888)
Net realised loss {102 5695
Met changa in unrealised appreciation’[depreciation) from:
Invesments in sacurites 1.825.809
Foreign cumency translations 12.721
Net change in unrcalised appreciation 1.838.520
Met gain from investments and forelgn currency 1,735 051
MNet increase in net assets resulting from operations 5 1.395.353

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended May 31, 2024

(Fxpressed in United States Dollars)

Het increascl{decrease] in net asscls resulting from operations:

Met investment loss 3 (330 658)
Mat raalised loss (103 558)
Meat change in unrealisad anpreciation 1,838,620
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 1,385 353
Met decrease in net assets resulting from fund wnit ransactions {2, 705.800)
het decraass in net assats {1,310,447)
Het assets
Beginning of year 39,704 200
End of year £ 38,580,753

Transactions in units for the vear ended May 31, 2024 are as folaws:

Class AUD Class USD
Fund unit transactions
Units repurchased (B1.811) (236.395)
Total units redeemed 81,611} [238,385)
Amounts repurchased § (5069951 S [2.195.804)
Tatal amount redeemad 5 [ 506, 306] 5 (2, 198,304)

“The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
[
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended May 31, 2024

FExpressed in United States Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Mel increase in net agsets resubing from operations 1,395,353
Adjustments bo reconcile e net increase i net assels resulling from
operalions to net cash provided by operaling aclivitics:

Procesds from sale of invasiments 2,896 331

Raalzad [55% on invastmants in sscunlies 98,581

Change in unrealissd appreciation on investments in securites (1,825 885)
Changes in recsivables for;

Investmenss sold 300764

Other assals (28,773)
Changes in payables for:

Printing fees 20435

Cusiody fees 43,023

Professional fees 23,473

Aecounting and administrative fees (4.517)

Management feas 3328
We: cash proviced by cperating activities 2,734,810
Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments on repurchase of units {3,030,787)
Kzt cash used in financing aclivides (3,020,797
Nat decraase In cash and cash aquivalants (295.867)
Cash and cash eguivalents - Beginning of year 1,080,778
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year T84, 792
At May 31, 2024 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash 540,867

Cesh dencminatled in foreign currencies 245 905
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year T8, T2

‘The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.

7
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Par-unit operating performance:

Met asget value, beginning of year

et invastment loes’

Mt gain from imvesiments and fassign curency
Total gain from investment operations

Met asset value, end of year

Taotal neturn®
Ratios 1o average net assets™

Ratia of sxpenses fo awerage nef assols
Ratia of nat investment 1285 1o 3verage nat assats

Caioulaied based on avorags units oulstanding durng the yiar,
]
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Class AUD Class USD
614 9.41
(0.05) [0.05)
042 039
[TET Uﬂ_
&.51 9.72
5.96% 328%
1.59% 1.60%
(0.85)% (0.20) %

Unithoidies nivurn and radios may vary from the relum and rofios presened due io the timing of copite! rensactions.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

1. ORCANIZATION

Targst Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (lhe “Series Trust™) is @ series trust of Ortu Curva Trust (the “Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands. The Trust was cstablished by
# Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019, and commenced operations on Mareh 31, 2020,

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited and [Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustec and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as 2 mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayvman [slands.

The investment abjective of the Series Trust is to pursus capital appreciation, while aiming to achisve a Net Asset
Walue per Unit for the relevant class of Units on the Maturity Date that is not less than 100% of the Issue Price of
such class of Linits by investing zll of the proceeds from the issue of Units in 3 Year USD Merformance Linked
Motes with Fixed Rate Coupons (the "Motes (USD)"), in the case of the USD Class Units, and 5 Year AUD
Performance Linked Notes with Fixed Rare Coupons (the "Notes (ALY, in the ease of the AUD Class Units, cach
to be issued by Signum Millenia II Limited (the "Notes Issuer™).

The Performance Linked Motes are due to maturz on March 28, 20235, concluding the trust term. In accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, &l the conclusion of the trust term the Trustes and Manager intend to
commence the terminztion process for the Series Trust. As such orderly liquidation was planned at the Series Trust's

inception, the Series Trust continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis in accordance with
LIS GAAP

Brown Brothers Hermimun & Co. (“BBH”) hag been appointzd as hoth the Series Trust’s custodian (the “Custodian™)
and administrator (the “Administrator”™). Such duties are handled by separate and independent business units within
the entity.

Capitalised terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorundum and Appendix which shoeld be read
in conjunction with thess financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING MOLLICIES

The Series Trusl's financial statements hese been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP™) applicable tw financial reporting and are stated in Uniwed
Stetes Dollar (“S™ or “USD™) rounded Lo the nearest TISD.

The prepargtion of financial stalements in conformity with US GAAP requires manzgement to make cstimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from those
eslimates.

The Series Trusl is an invesiment company and accordingly follows the investmeant company accounting and
reporting suidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB™) Accounting Standacds Codification
{(*ASC™) Topic 246 Financial Scrvices — Investment Companies.

The following is & summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
sEtements
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{4) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cush balunces are normally held in accounts with the Custodian. The Series Trust
considers 2l cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with matrity of three months or less at the lime of purchase
e be eash and cash cquivalenls.

(B) Valuation. FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to szl an asset or paid to ransfer a liability (i.c., the “exil price™) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

In accordance with the authorizative puidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fuir value of its investments in 2 hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value. The hisrarchy gives the highest priority to veluations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
prionty to valuations based upon unobservahle inputs that are significent to the valuaton (Level 3 mewsuremeants),

The puidanes establishas thras lavels of the faie value hisrarchy as follows:

+  Level 1 = Fair value measurements derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in sclive markels [or
identical assets or liabilities;

+  Level 2 = Iair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are obsenvable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

= Level 3 = Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the assat
or liability that are not based on observable marke: data (unobsarvable inpurs).

The following table prasents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierurchy as of Muy 31, 2024.*

(Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets fe- Other Shgnificant
dentical Observasie Unasbeerrable
Investments Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
e [Lawal 1] (Laval 2y [Leavel 2) May 31, 20274
Periormance Linked Noles 5 - 5 - 5 o7, 730347 5 37,793 34T

* For [uriher informelion on cacgories of sseurities rafier 1o the Schedule of Invesiments.

The following is & summary of sules und trunsfers of the fair valuations using significant unohservable inputs (Level
3) for the Beries Trust during the year ended May 31, 2024, as applicable;

Transfers into Transfers out of
Invesimant in Securites Sales ot cost Level 3 Level 3
Performance Linked Nates ] 27E2812  § - 5 -
Tetal Invesuments g ZiEe8iz 8§ = H =

The Performance Linked MNotas are valued by the Calculation Agent at cach NAV (Net Asset Value) date. The LUSD
and ALD Motes are exposed 10 a Fixed Portion and an Active Portion and are linked 1o the USD and AUD classes
respectively. The Fixed Portion Is structured through cumency swap lransuclions that cxchanze Japanesz Yen
(*JPY™) for Jupancsc Government Bonds (“JGBs™) and the currency of denomination of the USD Class or AUD
Class of the Series Trust. The Active Portion aims to generate excess return based on the performance of the

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINLUED)

Strategv through the call option transaction betwesn the Motes Issuer and Goldman Sachs International (*GSI™). On
the initial closing dule of the Series Trust the Fixed Portion is purchased at a discount to its face value which is the
value on marmurity and maiches the initial subscriptions into the Series Trust. The discouwnt is used to provide against
the [ixed costs over the life of the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion.

The Active Portion provides, through the call option transaction. a notional exposure to four strategies, MA WCM
FP Lul, MA Crubel Lid, MA GCI Lud und MA Niederhofler Smart Alpha Ltd. Should the performance of the Active
Portion be positive then the Series Trust will, subject to no default on the part of the Nows Issuer, JGBs, the backed
asses or GSI, the counterparty to the currency swap agreement, remurn the full face value of the Fixed Portion plus
the value of the Active Portion (the “excess reum”). Should the performance of the Active Portion be negative then
there will be no excess return and the Series Trust will receive the Fixed Portion only at maturity, The Fixed Portion
is valued hased an vield with valuation inputs being prevailing interest rates and crodil risk wsessmenl. AL May 31,
2024 an increase in the yield of 19 would result in a fall in value of the Fixed Pontion of approximately 0.78%. The
Active Portion is valucd baszd on the strategy level, which in turn is based on the performance of the undeclying
Funds. At May 31, 2024 an inceease in strategy level of the USD Notes of 1% would result in an increase in the
Mot Price of (.06%. An increasc in strawcgy level of the AUD Notes of 1% would result in an increase in the Wote
Price of 0.06%.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants usz to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, specific and browd credit data, liguidity statistes, and other fectors. A (nancial instrument's level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of whal constilutes “observeble” requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifisble, not propricwry, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The caizgorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument end does not necessarily correspond o the Manoger's perceived risk of that
instrument.

{C) Securities Transactions and Investment Ineome. Securities ransactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realised gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes.

(D) Forcign Currcocy. The Series Trusl's [unctionul and reporling currency is United Stales Daollar, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. Thersfore, the United States Dollar i
considered as the currency that mest faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events
and coanditions. The fluctuations in the valuz of cumrency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recorded as unrealised foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realised goins
or losses and unrealised appreciation or depreciation on investment securities and income and expensss are
translated on the respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The ellects of changes in
foreign curreney exchange rates on investments in securities are not secregated on the Statement of Operations from
the effects of changes in market prices and values of those securities, but are included with net realised and
unreglised gains or losses,

(E) Due to Custodian. Due w0 custodian in the Stutement of Asscts and Liahilitics includes amounts related to
forcign currency or cash owed.

(F) Offsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offesring assers and liabilities rapresented in

the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements W evaluale the cffoel or polential

11
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Truost

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject 1 an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to enother party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series T'rust intends to set off, and the Series Trust's right of set off is
enforceable at law. As of May 31, 2024, there was no offsetting.

{G) Receivables for Units Subscribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
subseribed in edvance is carried ul the issusnce amount that is receivable al the Statcment of Assets and Ligbilides at
May 31, 2024, Payable for repurchass of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2024,

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts duz from and to brokers represant receivables for securities sold and
payables [or sceuritics purchased that have been contracted for but nat yer settled or deliverad on the Statement of
Aszets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

3. UNITS
As of May 31, 2024, all of the units issusd by the Series Trust were held by onz unitholder,

{A) Subscription of Units. Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on sach dealing day.
The purchase price per unit calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point un the Valuation Duy
{cach day other than a Satrday or 2 Sunday on whizh banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,
Tokyo and Sydrey are open for business andfor such other dav or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time 10 lime detormine in respeet of the Scrics Trust) falling on the relevant dzaling dav by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust.

All income, expenses, realisad end unrealised gains and losses of the Series Trust are allovated to the unit clusses
based on their respective net assets.

{B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for répurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchasa
Day (e=ach day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business andfor such other day or days as the Manager, afier consultation
with the Trusws, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unithalders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of sentled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their injtial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic irensmission.

(C) Valuation. The net asset value is calculated by the Administrator as gl the valustion point on cach Valuation
Day {each duay other than a Samrdey or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business andfor such other day or days as the Manager, afler consullution
with the Truslee, muy [rom tim: to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) using such pricing service provider
or pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from lime to time. The Manuger belioves that the
methods, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fuir value messurcment. Such prices will be
treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator end the Manager and there were no ind spendent verification
of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in USD for USD Class and AUD
{Australian Dallar) for AUD Class.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

3. UNITS (CONTINUED)

Units are ounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of
a Unit.

The Administrator may apply such forcign exchange rates ss determined by the Mansger in consullation with the
Trustes, as reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
nat asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency,

{[Y) Distribution Policy. The policy in relatipn to the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders.
Consequently, all the Series Trust’s net income and realised capital gaing will be reinvested 2nd reflected in the Net
Asset Velue.

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal eourse of business, the Series Trust rades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changas in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions 1o perform (credit risk). Similar to credit risk, the Serizs Trust may be exposed m counterparty risk, or
the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unsettled or open transactions will default,
The potential loss could cxeced the value of the financial assers recorded in the financial statements. Financial
assets, which potentially exposs the Series Trust to credit risk, consist principally of cash due from counterparties,
investments and unrzalised gains on derivative contructs.

(A) Absence of Seecondary Market

There is not expectzd 1o be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units anly by means of repurchase. The nisk of any decline in the Nel Asset Value
aliributsble to the Unis held by a Unitholder requesting tha repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice wntil the relevant repurchase day will be borne by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In wddivon, there may be siuations in which Unitholders are unable o have their Units repurchased.

(B) No Cuarantee

An investment in the Serics Trust is neither insured nor guzranteed by any govemment, FovVErnment agencies or
instrumentalitizs or anv bank guarantes fund. Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or
guaranteced or endorsed by, any hank and the amaourt investad in Units may flugtuace up andlor down. Preservation
of principal is not guarantesd. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, including the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty thar Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investment, Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total amount invested,

{C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominaled in USD and AUD. This prescnis certzin risks relating to currency conversion if an
investor's financial activities are denominated principally in & currency or currency unit (including JPY) other than
USD and AUD. These include the risk thal exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to
devaluation of LSI) and ALT) or revaluation of the investor's currsncy) and the risk thar awthorities with jurisdiction
over USD and AUD or the investor's currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An
invrvase in the value of the investar's cumency against USD and AUD would decrease (a) the investor's currency
equivalent value of the MNet Asset Value and Met Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investors currency eyuivalent
value ol the distributions payable (if any).

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Scries Trust's organizational documents, cerain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified against certain liabilities that may arise oul of performunce of their duties to the Series “Trust,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

S.GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION (CONTINUED)

Additionally, in the nommal course of business, the Series ‘I'rust enters into contracts that contain & varicly of
indemnification clawses.

The Series Trust's meximum exposure under these amangements is unknown as this would  involve fiture claims
that may be made against the Scrics Trust that have not vet eccurred. However, the Series Trust has not had prior
claims or losses pursuant 1o these contracts,

G INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subjeet to the Cayman [slands aets in respect to its tax stzius. Under eurrent Cayman [slands sels,
there are no taxes or duty o be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritnce lax o any properly comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders
thereof, in respect of any such property or income. Authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncerlainly in lax positions (FASE ASC 740), reguires the Serics Trust Trustes to determing whether a wx posilion
of the Ssries Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related
eppeals or litigation processes, based on the teehniesl merils of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognised in the financial slements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifiv percent likelihood of being réalised upon ultimate
semlement with the relevant taxing authority. As of Mav 31, 2024, there was no foreign tax expense and no
oulstanding loreign lux payuble as discloscd in the Scrics Trust's Statement of Opcrations and Statcment of Asscls
and Liabilities, respectively.

T. FEES AND EXPENSES

(A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Adminisirator, for which the Administrator receives
a minimum monthly fee of US54.166. The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the
rate of 0.04% per annum of the Met Asset Value, The fees earned by the Administrator during the yeor endad May
31, 2024 und oustunding fecs pavable (o the Administrator as of May 31, 2024 have been disclosed in the Sticment
af Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilitizs, respectively.

‘The Administrator also receives a transter agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated s at ench Valuation Duy and puyable monthly in armcar. The transfor agent foes camed by the
Administrator during the year ended May 31, 2024 and outstanding transfer agent fees payable to the Administrator
as of May 31, 2024 have been disclosed in the Sutement of Operations and the Statement of Assels und Liubililies,
respectively.

{B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives oul of the zssels of the Series
Trust 2 custedian [oe of 0.015% per annum of the Met Asset Value, acerued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamned by the Custodian during the year ended May 31, 2024 and
outstanding fees pavable 1o the Custodiun us of May 31, 2024 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(C) Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-ofT foe of US$7,500 on the Initial Closing Dare,
and (it} 2 fixed annual fee of TUSS15,000. The fess earned by the Trustze during the year ended May 31, 2024 and

outstanding fiees payable 1o the Trustee as of May 31, 2024 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and
the Stulement of Asscts and 1iabilities, respectively.
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Target Sctting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31,2024

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(D) Management Fees

The Manager reccives oul of the assets of the Series Trust (i) 2 one-of¥ fee of USE90,000 on the Initial Closing Date,
(i) a fee at the rate of (L09% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to 2 minimum fee of US$125,000 per annum,
accrued on and caleuleted as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in amrears, and (iii) 2 one-off fee of
LISETS,000 upon the termination of the Series Trust. The costs and cxpenses in conneclion with the replacement of
MA ADG Limited by MA WCM FP Limited (the "Restructuring Costs") amounted to approximatzly USS20,000
{which included 17555,000 payable to the Munager). The foes curned by the Manager during the year ended May 31,
2024 and outstanding fees pavable to the Manager as of May 31, 2024 have heen dizclosad in the Statemeont of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor receives aut of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of (L53% per annum of the Fee Amount of cach
class of Units, calculeted end eccrued daily and payeble monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Distributor
during the vear ended May 31, 2024 and outstanding fzes pavable to the Distributor as of Mav 31, 2024 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company reccives out of the asscls of the Series Trust & fee of 0,01% per annum of the Fee Amount of
each ¢lass of Units, caléulated and accrued daily and payable monthly in armears. The costs and expenses in
connection with the replacement of MA ADG Limited by MA WCM FP Limited (the "Restructuring Costs”)
amounted to approximately USS20,000 (which included JPY 300,000 payahle to the Apcnt Company). The foes
earned b the Agent during the year ended May 31, 2024 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of
May 31, 2024 have been disclosed in the Statemont of Operations and the Statement of Assets snd Lizbililics,
respectively.

{G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related o ils operalions including but not limited to: (i) governmental
fzes: (il) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; (i) costs of borrowing monsy,
including interest expenses; (iv) extreordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
and (v) professional fees. Fees paid for the audit of financial smisments is LIS 44,632 and other fees paid is USD
8,208.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the invesiment and re-investment of
the essets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power Lo bormow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the
issue and repurchasa of units of tha Saries Trust.

The Trustes is responsible under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders.

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these [ees are sel oul in Nele 7 Lo the financial statements.

15

137/257



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2024

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The ‘I'rustee and Manazger have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 20, 2024, the
date on which these financial statements were approved for issue by the Trustee and Manager.

From June 1, 2024 through to the date of this repon, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
UsD 1,852,942,

The Performance Linked MNotzs are dus to mature on March 28, 2025, concluding the trust term.

16
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2024

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

As per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incurred an expense reserve inclusive of five
veurs of anticipated expenses in vear 1 of the Series Trust's operations for the celeulation of the NAYV in accordance
with the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is compased of contractual fees the Series Trust
will pay over its life. Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP thersfore expenses have besn
adjusted through the Smiement of Opcrations in the current perind to reflect only thoss costs atributable 1o the
current period in these financial statements.

‘Ihe Series “I'rust inzurred orpanizational and set up costs. For the caleulation of the NAV in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amorfised by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
peripds of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is 2 diverpence from US GAAP, and i3
tharzfore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the fimancial statements
{"F5 MNaY™), which 13 caloulated in accordance with LS GAAP, and the NAV calculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix (the “Trading NAV"} is shown below.

53124
Trading NAV 37,687,895
Organizational expenses 69,095
Expense reserve £33.762
FSNAY 38.390.753
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(Expressed in United States Doliars)

Principal
HAmaunt

ALID 10,248,450

ED 32,820,180

Glossary:

Security Doscription
PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES
CAYMAN ISLANDS

Shenum Mitenta Il Lid,
0 54% dus CIZE25
Bignum Milenia it Lid
0,00% due CUWIR28

TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS (Cosgt $37,947,059)

TOTAL PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES ({Cost $37,947,053)

TOTAL INVESTMENTS (Cost 337,547,059}

AUD Australian Dolar
USD United States Dollar

% of Nat
Agzats Fair Value
98.55%
88.5%
3 5,569,002
1,230,345
5 37,799,247

H 37,799,347

3 47,738,347

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial smtements.

A
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2023 31

2020 03
2023 31
40,739,971 38,766,360 5,533,123
804,220 114,786
276,559 39,473
309,923 44,235
20,654 2,948
40,177,716 5,734,565
324,997 46,387
67,213 9,593
49,698 7,093
17,975 2,566
15,551 2,220
1,082 154
476,516 68,013
39,701,200 5,666,552
6,789,451 969,058
32,911,749 4,607,494
1,106,405
3,499,311
6.14 876

9.41 1,343
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2020 03
2023 31
283,503 40,464
283,503 40,464
199,297 28,446
130,074 18,565
76,029 10,852
60,809 8,679
55,782 7,962
15,609 2,228
7,161 1,022
3,760 537
3,299 471
551,820 78,761
(268,317) (38,297)
(264,332) (37,728)
13,689 1,954
(250,643) (35,774)
(1,334,039) (190,407)
7,508 1,072
(1,326,531) (189,336)
(1,577,174) (225,110)
(1,845,491) (263,407)
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2020 03
2023 31
(268,317) (38,297)
(250,643) (35,774)
(1,326,531) (189,336)
(1,845,491) (263,407)
(6,709,034) (957,580)
(8,554,525) (1,220,987)
48,255,725 6,887,540
39,701,200 5,666,552
31
(212,676) (589,119)
(212,676) (589,119)
(1,336,481) (190,756) (5,372,553) (766,824)
(1,336,481) (190,756) (5,372,553) (766,824)
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2020 03
2023 31
(1,845,491) (263,407)
6,751,556 963,650
264,332 37,728
1,334,039 190,407
(250,114) (35,699)
(20, 654) (2,948)
(13,276) (1,895)
(1,087) (155)
44,698 6,380
(14,336) (2,046)
(2,296) (328)
(10,200) (1,456)
(61,110) (8,722)
6,176,061 881,509
(6,587,822) (940, 280)
(6,587,822) (940, 280)
(411,761) (58,771)
1,492,540 213,030
1,080,779 154,260
2023 31
804,220 114,786
276,559 39,473

1,080,779 154,260
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2020 03
31

6.81 972 9.61 1,372
(0.04) () (0.06) ©
(0.63) (90) (0.14) (20)
(0.67) (96) (0.20) (29)
6.14 876 9.41 1,343
(9.84) (2.08)

1.33 1.35

(0.63) (0.66)
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2020 03
2020 03
2020 31
10 EQ
2021
100
BBH
CSC
2022 11



GAAP

GAAP

ASC

FASB ASC

GAAP

820

946

1471257

FASB
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2023 31
2023
31
$ $ $ 38,766,360 $ 38,766,360
2023 31
$ 7,015,888 $ $
$ 7,015,888 $ $
NAV
JGB
GSI
MA WCM FP Limited MA Crabel Limited MA
GCI Limited MA Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited
JGB
GSI
2023 31
1.82
2023 31
0.09
0.09
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2023 31
2023 31

2023 31
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FASB ASC 740

more likely than not

50

2023 31

4,166
0.04
2023 31 2023
31
0.01
2023 31
2023 31
0.015 2023

31 2023 31
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125,000

MA WCM FP Limited MA ADG Limited

20,000
31
2023 31
500,000 2023
2023 31
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7,500
31
90,000
0.09
75,000
5,000 2023
2023 31
0.53
2023 31
0.01
MA WCM FP Limited MA ADG Limited
20,000
31

2023 11
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2023
74,534 1,159,219
NAV
GAAP
NAV
GAAP
GAAP NAV
NAV
2023 31
NAV 38,594,411
69,094
1,037,695

NAV 39,701,200
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2023
(Expressed in United Stetes Dollars)
Assets
Irvestrments, at far valoe {cost $40,739,371) § 38 766,260
Cash a4 220
Cash denominated in forsign cumencies 276,559
Reacevables for
investments sold 309,923
Other assals 20 654
Total assets A0AT77. B
Liabilities
Payablas for
Units repurchased 324 997
Protessional fees 67,213
Custody ke 43 608
Managemant fees 17,875
Accounting and administratve foes 15,551
Frnting fees 1,082
Total liabilities 476 516
Met assets 3 28,701,200
Met assets
Class ALID $ 5,780 451
Class USD 325911.7459
Units outstanding
Class ALID 1,106 405
Class UsD 3409311

MNet asset value per unit
Clacs AID § 6.14
Class USD 941

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the year ended May 31, 2023

(Expressed in United Stees Dedlars)

Investment income

Ftersst income 283 503
Total investment income 233 503
Expenses
Distnbutor fess 198 297
Managemant faes 130,074
Professional fees 76,029
Clrstody feas B0 808
Accourting and administratee feas 55 782
Trushes fass 15,608
Other fees 7161
Agent company fees 3 760
Frinting fees 3.299
Total expenses 551820
Met investment loss {268 3173
REALISED AND UNREALISED GAINALOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS AND
FOREIGH CURREMNCY:
Realised gainfloss) on:
Fvestments in securilies (264 332
Foreign cumency transachions 13 689
Mot realised loss {250 643)
Met change in unrealised appreciation/{depreciation) from:
Investments in securties (1.334.0349)
Foraign cumency transkafions 7.508
Met change in unrealised depreciation (13365313
Met loss from investments and foreign currency {1,577 174)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations {1,845 4491

The accompaiy ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended May 31, 2023

{Expressed in United Stedes Dollars)

Met increasef{decrease) in net assets resulting from cperations:

Med irvastment loss ] (268.317)
Med realised loss (250,643)
Met change in unrealised depreciation 11,326.531)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations {1545.4591)
Met decraase in net assets resulting from fund urst rensactions {5 709 034 1
Met decregse innat assels 18554 525)
Met assets
Baginning of year 48 255 725
End of year $ 39 701200

Transactions in wnits for the yvear ended May 31, 2023 are as follows

Class AUD Class USD
Fund unit transactions
Units repurchased (212.67R] {589,118}
Total units redeemed (212676 (5849 1149}
Amounts epurchesed {1336.481) § {5372 553)
Total amount redesmed (1336481) % (5,372,553}

The accompaiy ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended May 31, 2023

{(Expressed in United Stees Dedlars)

Cash flows from cperating activities:

Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations (1,645,481
Adjustments to reconcile the net decrease in net assets nesuling rom
operations o net cash provided by operating activilies

Procasds from sale of imvestments 8. 751 558

Raalised loss on mwvastments in securties 264 332

Change in unrealised depreciation on irvestmants in secunties 1.334 (39
Changes in recanables for:

Imeestments sobd (250,114}

Cther assets {20,654 )
Changes in pavables for

Printing fees {12,276
Agent company feas {1,087)
Custody feas 44 593
Professional fees {14,336
Accounting and administrative fees {2,296)
Managament fess {10,200
Dustnbutor fees (61,110
Met cash provided by operating activiies 6,175 061
Cash flows from fimancing activities:

Payments on nepurchiase of units (B.587,822)
Met cash usad m financing activities 6,587 £22)
Met decrease in cash and cash equavalents {441,761)
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of vaar 1492 540
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 1,080,773
At May 31, 2023 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash 504 220

Cash denominated in foreign curencies ITE .55
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 1,080,779

The accompaiy ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7
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Statement of Financial Highlights
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{(Expressed in United Stees Dedlars)

Per-unit aperating performance:

Met asset value, beginning of year

Met investment loss?

Met loss from irvaestmeants and farsagn curmency
Total loss from investment operations

Met asset value, end of year

Total retum?®

Ratios to average net nusal:n:;
Ratio of expanses bo avarage net assets

Ratio of nat investment loss to average net assels

' Calculated based on average units outstanding during the year

Class ALID Class USD

$ 681 $ 9.81

{0 04) {006

{063} (0.14)

(067} (0 20)

$ 6.14 H 8.41
1984 )% {20306
1.33% 1.350%
(0 63)% 0 BB G

7 Unaholter's return and rabos may vary from the return and rabios presanted due to the brrosg of capital transact ons
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Ortu Curva Trust (the “Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands. The Trust was established by
a Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019, and commenced operations on March 31, 2020,

Pursuant to the Master Trost Deed, Intertrust 8PV (Cayman) Limated and [0 EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
a5 Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a Nel Asset
Value per Unit for the relevant class of Units on the Maturity Date that is not less than 1009% of the Issue Price of
such class of Units by investing all of the proceeds from the issue of Units in § Year USD Performance Linked
Motes with Fixed Rate Coupons (the "Notes (USD)™), in the case of the USD Class Units, and 5 Year AUD
Perfornmance Linked Motes with Fixed Kate Coupons (the "MNotes (AUTD™), in the case of the AUD Class Units, each
to be issued by Signum Millenia I Limited (the "Notes Issuer™).

Brown Brothers Harmiman & Co, (“BEH”) has been appointed as both the Series Trust's custodian (the *Custodian™)
and administrator (the * Administrator’™). Such duties are handled by separate and ndependent business units within
the entity.

On December &, 2021, Corporation Service Company (“CSC") announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust Group. In
November 2022, C5C closed on its acquisition of Intertrust Group,

Capitalised terms not defined here n are defned in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) applicable to financial reporting and are stated in United
States Dollar (5" or “USE™) rounded to the nearest USD,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investment company accounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBE™) Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC™) Topic 946 Financial Services — Investrment Companies.

The following is a summnary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
statements.

(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash balances are nommally held in accounts with the Custodian, The Series Trust
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-termn deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents.,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B) Valuation. FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value az the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,

In accordance with the authoritative suidance on fair value measurements and disclesures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the mputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements),

The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

*  Level 1 - Fair value measurements derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

= Lewvel 2 — Fair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

*  Level 3 — Fair value measurements derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

The following table presents the financial instruments camied on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2023.*

Unadjusted)
Curoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Investmants Inputs Inputs FairValua at
- Lavel 1} (Lavel 2) {Level 3} 31, 2023
Perform ance Linked Notes E = E3 = % 3B 785 360 E3 3B B 360

*  For further information on categori es of securities refer to the Schedule of Investments.

The following i= a summary of sales and transfers of the fair valuations using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3) for the Series Trust during the vear ended May 31, 2023, as applicable:

Transfars into Transfers cut of
Inwestment In Securities Sales at cost Level 3 Ll 3
Pedfomance Linked Motes ] 7.015 888 £ - ¥ -
Tetal investm ants E3 TOIEEEE & - $ -

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Calculation Agent at each NAV (Net Asset Value) date. The USD
and AUD Motes are exposed to a Fixed Portion and an Active Portion and are linked to the USD and AUD classes
respectively. The Fixed Portion 1= structured through currency swap transactions that exchange Japanese Yen
(“JPY™) for Japanese Government Bonds (“JGBs™) and the cumrency of denomination of the USD Class or AUD
Clasgzs of the Series Trust. The Active Portion aims to generate excess retum based on the performance of the
Strategy through the call option transaction between the Notes Issuer and Goldman Sachs Intemational (“GSI"). On
the initial closing date of the Series Trust the Fixed Portion is purchased at a discount to its face value which is the
value on maturity and matches the initial subscriptions into the Series Trust. The discount is used to provide against
the fixed costs over the life of the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion,

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Active Portion provides, through the call option transaction, a notional exposure to four strategies, MA WCM
FP Ltd, MA Crabel Ltd, MA GCI Ltd and MA Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Lid. Should the performance of the Active
Portion be positive then the Series Trust will, subject to no default on the part of the Notes Issuer, JGBs, the backed
assels or GSI, the counterparly Lo the currency swap agreement, retum the full face value of the Ficed Portion plus
the value of the Active Portion (the “excess retum™y. Shoold the performance of the Active Portion be negative then
there will be no excess returm and the Series Trust will receive the Fixed Portion only at matunity. The Fixed Portion
is valued based on vield with valuation inputs being prevailing interest rates and credit risk assessment. At May 31,
2023 an increase in the yield of 196 would result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 1.82% The
Active Portion is valued based on the strategy level, which in tum is based on the performance of the underlying
Funds, At May 31, 2023 an increase in strategy level of the USD Notes of 1% would result in an increase in the

Mote Price of 0.09%. An increase in strategy level of the AUD Notes of 1% would result in an increase in the Note
Price of 0.05%

Inputs are used in applving the various valuation techmiques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make wvaluation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularky
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager's perceived risk of that
instrument.

(C) Securities Transactions and Invesiment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Kealised gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes.

(D} Foreign Currency. The Series Trust’s functional and reporting currency is United States Dollar, which is the
currenicy of the primary economic environment in which it operates. Therefore, the United States Dollar is
considered as the cumrency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underly ing transactions, events
and conditions. The fluctuations in the value of cumrency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recorded as unrealised foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realised gains
or losses and unrealised appreciation or depreciation on nvestment securities and imcome and expenses are
translated on the respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from
the effects of changes in market prices and values of these securities, but are included with net realised and
unrealised gains or losses.

(E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Stalement of Assets and Liabilities includes amounts related to
foreign currency or cash owed,

(F) OfMsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arangements on its financial position for recognised assets and liabilities. These recognised assets
and liabilitics are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master
netting amrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to sel off, and the Series Trust's right of set off is
enforceable at law, As of May 31, 2023, there was no offsetting,
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Recelvables for Units Subseribed In advance and Payables Tor Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
subscribed in advance is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Staternent of Assets and Liabilities at
May 31, 2023, Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Asseds and Liabilities al May 31, 2023,

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
pavables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not vet settled or delivered on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

3. UNITS
As of May 31, 2023, all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

(A) Subscription of Units. Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day.
The purchase price per unit calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Valuation Day
(each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,
Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time o time determine in respect of the Series Trust) fallng on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Dav, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust.

All imeome, expenses, realised and unrealised gaing and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit ¢laszes
based on their respective net assels.

(B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as st each Repurchase
Dav (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New Yok,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and‘or such other day or davs as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trst ).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their initial purchase, Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

(C) Valuation. The net asset value is caleulated by the Administrator as at the valuation peint on each Valuation
Day {each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges i each of MNew Yok,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or davs as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) using such pricing service provider
or pricing scurce as the Manager and the Trustee may detenmine from time to time. The Manager believes that the
methods, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value measurement. Such prices will be
treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager and there were no independent verification
of such prices,

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per umit in USD for USD Class and AUD
{Aunstralian Dollary for AUD Class.

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of
a Unit.

The Administrator may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager in consultation with the
Trustes, as reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make amy calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged mto or from the relevant cumrency.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

3. UNITS (CONTINUED)

(I} Distribution Policy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust iz not to make distributions to Unitholders.
Consequently, all the Series Trust’s net income and realised capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the Net
Asset Value,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial ransactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform (eredit risk). Similar to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unsettled o open transactions will default,
The polential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements, Financial
assets, which potentially expose the Series Trust to credit risk, consist principally of cash due from counterparties,
investments and unrealised gams on derivative conlracts.

(A) Absence of Secondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units only by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice until the relevant repurchase day will be bome by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase, In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased,

(B) No Guarantee

An investrnent in the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranteed by amy government, government agencies o
instrumentalities or any bank guarantee fimd. Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or
guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and'or down, Preservation
of principal 15 nol guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, inchuding the
prossible loss of prineipal, There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared to sustam losses up to the total amount invested,

(C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated i USD and AUD. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an
investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (ncluding JPY) other than
USD and AUD. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to
devaluation of USD and AUD or revaluation of the investors currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction
over USD and AUD or the investor's currency, a5 the ease may be, may impose or modify exchange controls, An
increaze in the value of the investor's currency against USD and AUD would decrease (a) the investor's currency
equivalent value of the Net Asset Value and Net Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investor's currency equivalent
value of the distributions payable (if any).

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION
Under the Series Trust’s organizational docurnents, certain parties (incleding the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified against certain liabilities that may arise out of performance of their duties to the Series Trust

Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
indemnification clauses.

The Series Trust's maximum exposure tnder these arrangements is unknown as this would  involve fulire claims
that may be made against the Series Trust that have not vet ocowred, However, the Series Trust has not had prior
claims or losses pursuant to these contracts.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 202{0-03

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands acts in respect to its tax status. Under current Cayman Islands acts,
there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the natwre of estate
duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders
thereof, in respect of any such property or income, Authortative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertamty in tax positions (FASB ASC 7400, requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a tax position
of the Series Trust 15 more likely than not to be sustained upon examnation, including resolution of amy related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax pesitions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognised in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realised upon ultimate
settlemnent with the relevant taxing authority, As of May 31, 2023, there was no foreign tax expense and no
outstanding foreign tax payable as disclosed in the Series Trust’s Statement of Operations and Statement of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Adminisirator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Admmistrator, for which the Admimstrator receives
a minimum monthly fee of US%4. 166, The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the
rate of (.04% per annum of the Net Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the vear ended May
31, 2023 and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of May 31, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement
of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0,012 per anmmm of the Net Asset Value, acerued on and
calculaled as al each Valuation Day and pavable monthly in arrear. The transfer agent fees camed by the
Administrator during the year ended May 31, 2023 and outstanding transfer agent fees pavable to the Administrator
as of May 31, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,
respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custadian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.015% per annum of the Net Asset Value, acerued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Dav and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the vear ended May 31, 2023 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2023 have been disclosed m the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee receives cut of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of USE7,500 on the Initial Closing Date,
and (ii) a fixed annual fee of USS15,000, The fees eamed by the Trustee during the vear ended May 31, 2023 and
outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(D) Management Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of US390,000 on the Initial Closing Date,
(ii) a fee at the rate of (L0995 per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of USS125,000 per anmum,
acerued on and caleulated as at each Valuation Day and pavable monthly in arears, and (iii) a one-off fee of
UISE75.000 upon the ternimation of the Series Trust. The costs and expenses in connection with the replacement of
MA ADG Limited by MA WCM FP Limited (the "Restructuring Costs") amounted to approximately USS20,00d
{which ncluded US$5,000 payable to the Manager). The fees eamed by the Manager during the yvear ended May 31,
2023 and outstanding fees pavable to the Manager as of May 31, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2023

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

{E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0053% per annum of the Fee Amount of each
class of Units, caleulated and acerued daily and payvable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Distributor
during the vear ended May 31, 2023 and outstanding fees pavable to the Distributor as of May 31, 2023 have been
disclosed in the Statemnent of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,

(F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Fee Amount of
each class of Unite, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in amrears. The costs and expenses in
connection with the replacement of MA ADG Limited by MA WCM FP Limited (the "Restructuring Costs")
amounted to approximately USS20,000 (which included JPYS500,000 payable to the Agent Compamy). The fees
eamned by the Agent during the year ended May 31, 2023 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of
May 31, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

respectively.

(G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations inchuding but not limited to: (i) governmental
fees; (1) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; (i) costs of bomowing money,
including interest expenses; (iv) extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
and (v) professional fees.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investiment of
the assels of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the
issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust,

The Trustee is responsib le under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders.

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these fees are sel oul in Mole 7 to the financial statements,

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 8, 2023, the date
on which these financial statements were approved for issue by the Trustee and Manager.

From June 1, 2023 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
USD 74,534 and USD 1,159,219 from Class AUD and Class USD, respectively.
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2023

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

As per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incurred an expense reserve inclusive of five
yvears of anticipated expenses in vear | of the Series Trust’s operations for the calculation of the NAW in accordance
with the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is composed of contraciual fees the Series Trust
will pay over its life, Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been
adjusted through the Statemnent of Operations in the curent period 1o reflect only those costs attributable to the
current period in these financial statements,

The Series Trust incurmred organizational and set up costs. For the calculation of the NAY in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendic these costs are amortised by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the ameounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the financial statements
(“F§ NAV™T), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAV calculated in accordance with the
Cifering Memorandum and Appendic (the “Trading NAV™) is shown below,

5/31/23
Trading NAV 38504411
Organizational expenses 60,004
Expense reserve 1,037,605
F8 NAV 39,701,200
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2024
38,760,799 5,532,329
1,909,273 272,511
36,851,526 5,259,818
3,075,121.326
1,021,294.023
9.74 1,390
9.74 962
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2024 10 EQ 7,500
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2024 21
13

133,142,448
11 675,784,752

48,571,607
39,288,704,261
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10 EQ
2023 12 31
2023 2022
347,555 49,607 240,329 34,302
3,160,435 451,089 2,963,790 423,022
1,874,066 267,485 1,235,705 176,372
5,382,056 768,181 4,439,824 633,696
10 (302,222) (43,136) (937,411)  (133,797)
5,079,834 725,045 3,502,413 499,899
5,079,834 725,045 3,502,413 499,899
12 750,000 107,048 750,000 107,048
4,329,834 617,997 2,752,413 392,852
5,079,834 725,045 3,502,413 499,899

2024 26
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2023 2022
2,001,198 285,631 2,128,110 303,745
2,001,198 285,631 2,128,110 303,745
(559,027) (79,790)  (1,119,588)  (159,799)
(79,848) (11,397) (285,203) (40,707)
1,362,323 194,444 723,319 103,239
223,200 31,857 140,398 20,039
(8,102) (1,156) (3,716) (530)
215,098 30,701 136,682 19,509
1,577,421 225,145 860,001 122,748
1,577,421 225,145 860,001 122,748
1,577,421 225,145 860,001 122,748
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10 EQ

2023 12 31

2022 750,000 107,048 1,892,412 270,104 2,642,412 377,151
860,001 122,748 860,001 122,748
860,001 122,748 860,001 122,748

2022 12 31 750,000 107,048 2,752,413 392,852 3,502,413 499,899

2023 750,000 107,048 2,752,413 392,852 3,502,413 499,899
1,577,421 225,145 1,577,421 225,145
1,577,421 225,145 1,577,421 225,145

2023 12 31 750,000 107,048 4,329,834 617,997 5,079,834 725,045
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2023 2022

13 638,521 91,136 698,914 99,756
638,521 91,136 698,914 99,756

(160) (23) (3,716) (530)

(160) (23) (3,716) (530)

638,361 91,113 695,198 99,226

1,235,705 176,372 540,507 77,147

1,874,066 267,485 1,235,705 176,372

1,874,066 267,485 1,235,705 176,372

1,874,066 267,485 1,235,705 176,372
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10 EQ

2023 12 31

10 EQ
102
102

2024
12
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2023 2022

(79,848) (285,203)

26,519 2022 21,097
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2023 2022
497,466 477,576

2023 2022
223,200 140,398
223,200 140,398

2023 2022
(7,942) (2,872)
(160) (844)
(8,102) (3,716)

2023 2022
223,200 140,398
(8,102) (3,716)
215,098 136,682

2035
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10

11

2023 2022
6,168 33,858
291,887 199,881
49,500 6,590
347,555 240,329

2023 2022
3,160,435 2,963,790
3,160,435 2,963,790

1.1

2023 2022
(201,404) (915,342)
(27,639) (21,452)
(654) (617)

(72,525)

12 31 (302,222) (937,411)

2023 2022
6,168 33,858
3,452,322 3,163,671
1,874,066 1,235,705
5,332,556 4,433,234
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(27,639) (21,452)

(201,404) (915, 342)

(229,043) (936,794)
2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000 750,000 750,000
2023 2022

1,577,421 860,001

160 3,716

1,577,581 863,717

(383,719) (314,887)

(635,189) (135,119)

79,848 285,203

638,521 698,914

2023 2023 2023 12 31
1,235,705 652,773 (14,412) 1,874,066
1,235,705 652,773 (14,412) 1,874,066
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2023 2022
Mote usDs UsDs
Current assets
Debtors and prepayments 8 347,555 240,328
Amounts owed by related parties g 3,160,435 2,963,790
Cash at bank and in hand 1,874,066 1,235,705
5,382,056 4,439,824
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year 10 (302,223 (8937 .411)
Met current assets 5,079,834 3.502.413
Met Assets 5,079,834 3.502.413
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 4,329,834 2,792,413
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 5,079,834 3,502,413

The notes on pages 10 to 17 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages & to 17 were approved by the Board of Directors on 268th  April 2024 and signed

on its behalf by;

DoccSigned by:
| Gy
'h'L: :_-\.{L'ML F:a' v.\l

.

DecuSagaed by
-

e
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Annual report and financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2023 2022

Motes usDs LsED3

Tumover 2,001,198 2,128,110
Gross profit 2,001,138 2,128,110
Administrative expenses (559,027) (1.118,588)
Cther operating losses 4 (79,848) (285, 203)
Operating profit 1,362,323 723,319
Interest receivable and similar income Ga 223,200 140,358
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (8,102} {3,716}
Net interast receivable 215,098 136,682
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,577,421 860,001
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Profit for the financial year 1,577 421 860,001
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,5ﬁ,42‘| 860,001

All results in the cument and preceding year derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 17 form part of the financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Called up

Retained

share capital earnings Yotal Equity

usDs usD% usD$

Balance as at 1 January 2022 750,000 1,882,412 2,642,412
Profit for the year - 860,001 860,001
Total comprehensive income for the year - 860,001 850,001
Balance as at 31 December 2022 750,000 2,752,413 3,502,413
Balance as at 1 January 2023 750,000 2,752,413 3,502,413
Profit for the year - 1,577,421 1,577,421
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - 1,577,421 1,577,421
Balance as at 31 December 2023 750,000 4,326,834 5,079,834

The notes on pages 10 to 17 form part of the financial statements,
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Mote 2023 2022
usD% UsDs
Net cash generated from operating activities 13 638,521 G98.914
Taxation paid - -
Net cash generated from operating activities 638.521 698.914
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (160) (3.718)
Net cash used in financing activities {160} {3,716)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 638,361 695,198
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,235,705 240,507
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 1,874,066 1,235,705

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand

1,874,066 1,235,703

Total of cash and cash equivalents

1,874,066 1,235,705

The notes on pages 10 to 17 form part of the financial statements.
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Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 Summary of compliance

The indendual fnancal statements of 10 EQ Management Bammuda Limited (the “Compary] have bean
prepared i complance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, includng Financial Reporting Standard
102, "Tha Firancial Repating Standard applicatds in the Unitad Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” ("FRS
1027}

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The pnncipal accounting policies apphed in the preparabon of thess financial staterments are sel oul balow
These policies have been consistently applied to all the yoars presented, unless otherwise stated

{a) Basis of preparation

These fnancial statements are prepared on @ going concem basis, under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the recognition of cartain finencial assets and liabilities measwred at fairvalue

The preparation of fnancial statements reguires the use of certain cnbical accounting eshmates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company accounting policias

{b) Geing Concern

The Company has a record of generating cash from cperations and it is noted that the majonty of revenuas
Are recUring in nature . Trading contribubion for the first part of 2024 are in line with expectations.

The Dwectors have @ ressonable expactation thet the Company has adegquale resowrces to continug in
operations exitance for the nest bvelie monthe from the signing of the financial staternents. Accordingly, the
Directors continue to adopt the gong concem basis In prepanng these fnancial statements, The Direclors
baleve that the Company will continue in operabional existence for the foresseable fulure

{¢) Foreign currency

{i)  Fenchions! and presentatons cumancy
Tha Company's functional and présantabional curency 15 Uinted States Dolars (USDE)

() Transachons and balfances

Foneign cumancy transactions are iransiated inte the fnctional cumency of the underlywng entibes using the
spot exchenge rate at the dates of the trensactons

At each penod end, foresgn currency monslary tems are translated using the dosing rate. Non-monatary
iems maasured al hestoncal cost ane ranslated wsng the exchangs rate at the date of the transaction and nor:
monalary tems meassured &t far value are measured wsing the axchange rale when far vaue was
daterminad

Fonaign exchange gans and losses resulling from the settlement of transactions and fom the transistion af
pefod-end axchangs rates of monetary assets and labilites denominated in kraign CUMBNCISs e MCognis ad
in tha tola profit and total comprehansive income statament wathin 'Forelgn exchange (loss Ygain
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Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 Summary of significant accounting policies - ([continued)
{d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the far value of the considerabion recaived or recevable n respact of sarvicas
rendeared from he provisien of collective imvestment schame, net of any discounts and rebates allowed by the
Comparny, and company valus addad taves  Revenues 15 recogresed on an scoruals basis, with daferral of any
cagh received in advance, Deferred income is released 1o the income statement over the period to which &
redates, Other revenue items redate to

(1) Interest income
Inferest income 15 recogrised on an accnsels bass

(i) Devidend income
Drividend income is recognised when the Aght to recaive payment is established

{nf Management recharge incomefsxpanse
Management rechanges are calculated basad on the sernces provided and costs incurmed byw'trom subsidianes
and othar growp comparsss during the year

(v} Management faes

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to 0.2%
per quarter of either the product of the initial wnil prce and the number of units in isswe &t a Valuation Day
coincidng with a Dealing Day, or of the Met Asset Value (all as defined in the Offering Memoranda andfor
Appendces of the relevant mvestment funds) for all funds. In some cases, these management fees ane
subgect Lo @ mimum andfor an addibonal feced fee also exists

{v) Consuttancy faes
Consultancy fees ane neceived rom the imestment funds under management for senices providad by the
Company ralabng to the sat up of leemnation of an investmant fund or sub fund. Such Tees are dateminad on
@ case-by-case basis

(e} Administrative expenszes
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure

Managament recharges ane included in administrative apenses and calculated based on the services
provided and costs incumad tofrom other Group entities dunng the year

{f} Provisions and contingencies
Provisions ame recognised when the Company has @ present legal or constructive obligalion as a result of past

events, it is probable that an cutdow of resources will be required to settie the obligation, and the amount of
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Page 11
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7 Summary of significant accounting policies - ([continued)

{g) Impalrment of nondinancial assets

At each balance sheat date, non-finandal assets ot camed at fair value ane assessed to determine whether
thera i an indication that the asset may be mpaired  If thena is such an indicabon, the recoverable amount of
the assel i comparad bo the caming amount of the assal

The recovarable amaount of the &ssad is the higher of the far value less costs to sell andvalue in use. Valua in
use 5 defined as the prasent valus of the fulure pre-tax and interest cash flows obtainable as a result of the
assets continued use. The pretas and interest cash fows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
represents the cument market risk-free rate and the nsks mherent m the asset

If the recoverabie amount of the assel is estimated to be lower than the camang amount, the camyng amount
5 reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment 1055 S recognisad in the income statement, wnless the
asset has been revalusd when the amounts are recognised in other comprehensive income fo the extent of
any previously recognised revaluglion. Thergafter any excess is recognisad n the income statement

If @n ampasrment 055 15 subsegquently eversed, the camang amount of the assel 15 moreased to the revised
eshimate of its recoverable amounk but only bo the extent thak the revised carmying amount does not excesd the
camying amount that wowld have been determined (net of depreciation) had no mpaiment loss been
recogrised In pror pencds. A reversal of an impairment loss is recogrised in the total profit and total
comprehensye income

{h) Finaneial instruments
The Company has chosan to adopt Sactions 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financeal instruments

(i} Financial aseats

Basic financal assels, including amounts dus from group undertakings are intiglly recognised &t the
fransaction pnce. Financial assets are derecogresed when (a) the contractusl nghts to the cash flows from the
assel expire or are seftted, or (b} substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are
transferred to another party o (¢) despite having retained some significant nskes and rewards of ownership,
contral of the asset has bean transfernad to another party who has the practical ahility to unilaterally sa8 the
asset bo an unnelated third paty without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial kabilities
Basic financial kabdiies, induding amounds owed o group undertakings and other pavables are inibally
recogrised at transaction paca, unless the arrangement constilutes a financing transaction, where the debt
instrument s measured 2 the present value of the future payments (net of direclly attnbutable issue costs)
discounted at the market rate of interest. lssue costs are recognised in the income statement over the temn of
the debt on an effechve interest rate basis.

Drabl svstrurments are subsequently camed at amortised cost, wsing the effective intenast rate method

Financial liabilties are derecognised when the liakility i5 extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires

Pags 12
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies - ([continued)

(I} Offzetting

Francial assets and abilies are offset and the net amounts presanted on the Anancal statements when
thare is a legally enforceable nght 1o set off the recognition amounts and there i an intenbon to setthe on a net
basis or to realise the asset and seltle the labiity simutaneously

{j) Share capital

Ordinary shares ere dassified as equiy. Incremental costs directiy attibutable to the issue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceseds

(k) Distributions to equity holders

Diwvidends and ofther distibutions to the Company's sharehalders are recogmised as a kabilty in the fnancal
stalements in the panod in which the dividends and other distibubons afe approved by the stakeholdars
These amounts are recognised in the statement of changss in equity

(I} Related party tranzactions

The Company discloses ransactons with related parises which are not wholly owned within the same group
Whare appropriate, trarsactions of a similar nature are agoregated uniess, in the opnion of the direclors,
separate disclosure is necessany to understand the effect of the Iransactions on e Company Bnancal
statements

3 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and pdgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and ofher factors,
incluceng expectations of future events thet are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concemng the fulure. The esbimates and assumptions that
have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adustment to the camying amounts of assels and liabilities wathin
the next financial year are addressed below

() Prowvisons for bad debls ard Accrued (nooms

The Compafy fecodmses trade deblors and accrued income al recoverable amounts. The recoverable
armount of trade dsbtors and accrued incoms 15 asssssed on an indnadual basis wsing the judgement of
maragement bo assess the recoverable value of these assets and quantify the level of provisioning which
takes info account an assessment of the customers cumrent and histonc fnancial posstion, age profile of
accrued income and outstanding debt and assessment of historical recovery rates

Page 13
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4 Operating profit

Operating proft is stated after crediting
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2023 2023
usDg LSCE
Fonaian exchange bsses 79.648) {285 203}

The audit fee attnbuted b the Company for the vear of $28,519 (2022, £21 067} is included wilken the annual
managament charge from a relaled enbly by common control

5 Employees and Directors

Foary management compansalion

Key management includes the drectors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or
pavable by the Company or other affilated companies to key management is shown below

2023 2022
uspD$ US0E
Salanes and other short term bensfits 497 466 477 576
6 et Interest expense
{a) Interest receivable and similar income
2023 022
UsD$ LUSCE
Interast on mtércormpany khan 223,200 140,393
Total [mﬁnst recul_vauhl & and similarincome 223&5‘! 140,393
{b) Interest payable and similar charges
2023 2022
UsD$ LIS
Bank changes (7 .842) [2.872)
Bank interest pavable (160} [544]
Total interest expense on financial liabilities 8,102} {3 716
{c} Met Interest expense
2023 0322
Us0g LSCH
Interest recanable and Smilar income 223 200 140,308
Interest pavable and similar charges (8,102} [3,T16)
et interest income 215,088 136 6332

T Income Tax

Under cumrent Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on eibher income or
capital gains.  The Company has recenad an undertaking from the Minster of Finance im Bermuda exempling

it from any such taxes at least until the year J35

Page 14
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8 Debtors and prepayments 2023 2022
UsD§ USCE

Trade deblors 6 168 33858
Accnued iNcome 2891 887 193 581
Prepayments 49 500 85490

347 &55 240 329

g Amounts owed by related parties 2023 2023
UusD$ USCE

Amounts owed by refated parties 3,180,435 2,963 7490
3,160,435 2 863 750

The amounts owed by group undertakings ame unsecured, have no fived date of repayment and are repayable
on demand, Any group undertakings over €1 ($1.1) milion bears interest at @ rate of 5% per annum

10 Creditors 2023 022
UsD$ LISCE

Amounts falling due within one year

Armounts owed (o related parties (201, 404) (B13,242)
AoCn s (27,639) [21.452)
Chaterrrand Inconneg (5564) (517}
Gthar craditors (72,626) .
At 31 Decemnber [302,3233) (237411

The amounts dus to group undertakings are unsecured, interast free, have no fixed date of repayment and ars
rapayable on demand

1 Financial instrum ents

Tha company et tha I'|:|II-’_\w|r|g financal insirumants

2023 L LEH
UsD$ US0E

Financial assets that are measuned 2l amortised cost
Trade deblors 6,168 33,858
Othar recsvables 3452 322 83 ET
Cash and cash aguivalents 1,874 066 1,235 705
5332 556 4431234

Fage 15
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11 Financial instruments {continued)

2023 2022
UEDE USDE
Financial habilties measurad at amortised cost
Actiias [27.639) [21,452)
Arncuants cweed to related panes (201.404) (915,242)
[223.043) (936 794
12 Share capital 2023 2022
Usps Usng
Authorised
1,000,000 commen shares of USDE1 each 1,000,000 1,000, 000
Izsued and fully pald
750,000 common shanes of USD§1 each 750,000 150,000
The Company has one dass of share capital which cames no aght (o foed Income
13 Motes to the statement of cash Nows
Reconciliation of eperating profit to net cash from operating activities
2023 2022
USDS USCE
Profit for the financial year 1,677 421 850 001
Adpustrments for
Inilarasl axpersa 160 3716
Dperating profit 1,677,581 L
Working capital movermants
{lncrease) in debtors and prepayments (383,719} (514 88T
[Decreasa) inpayables (635,189) (135.119)
Foreign exchange moveamant 79848 285103
Cash flow from operating activities 638,521 G35 914
Analysis of changes in net funds
At 1 Jan Cash flows Exchange At 31 Dec
2023 movem ents 2023
UsD$ UsSDS USDS UsSDS
Cash at bank 1,235,705 652,773 (12413} 1,874 066
Total 1,235,705 652,773 {14,412) 1,874 066

Fage 16
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Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

14 Related party transactions

Other than note 5. transadtions with other wholly owned subsidianes related by common control are not
disciosed as the Company has taken advaniage of the exemption in section 3314 of FRS 102

15  Contrelling parties

As at 31 December 2023, the ulbmate hobding company info which the results are consoldated is Saphilux
Sar (a Luxembourg entity)

16 Events after the end of the reporting period

There have baan no matenal evants after the raporting date which regure disclosure of adjustmeants to the
financial statements for the wear ended 31 December 2023

Fage 17
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Intertrust SPV Cayman Limited

2024 500,300 7,141

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2024 10 6,000 1,512 9,380
2024 836 1,600
2024 875 5,000
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (the “Series Trust”), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2024, the
statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and financia highlights for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2024, and and it's financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

We draw attention to the fact that the supplementary information included in Unaudited Appendix does not form
part of the audited financial statements. We have not audited this supplementary information and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on this supplementary information.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust’s financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

242/257



EDINETOIOOD
0000000000000000doooddn(eLs033)
o o o o o o e e e

with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG LLP
November 20, 2024
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion
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In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited(the' company’):
give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of its profit for the
year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland; and

have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the total profit and total comprehensive income for the year;
the balance sheet;
the statement of changes in equity;
the statement of cash flows; and
therelated notes 1 to 16.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicablein the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financia Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’S) Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual’ report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
websiteat  www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’'s report.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We
also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified
the key laws and regulations that
had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the

company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within
the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our

specific procedures performed to address them are described below
The valuation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and therefore there is
potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In response, we tested the design and
implementation of controls regarding the valuation of accrued income, as well as performing substantive
tests of detail. Our substantive testing undertaken, on a sample basis, compared management’s estimate of
recoverable values to amounts hilled and recovered post year-end, and challenged management on
recoverable values by assessing historic billing and recovery rates based on our understanding of the
specific customer circumstances.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias;, and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.
In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
reviewing financia statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;
performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;
enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potentia litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermudian
Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s directors those
matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed in this letter to) state to them in an independent auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for our reports, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP
St Helier
30th April 2024
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 2020-03 (the “Series Trust”), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2023, the
statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and financia highlights for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2023, and it's financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with
U.S. GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG LLP
November 8, 2023
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